A River Runs Through It functional + ecological + educational

Abstract

The south-western U.S. is facing the effects of climate change on a daily basis. 50 year projections show this already harsh desert climate warming as much as 8°F, while simultaneously experiencing a drop in precipitation of 4-8% annually (National Climate Assessment, 105-106). On average Tucson, Arizona receives 11.92" of rainfall annually and has an average high temperature of 83.7°F (Data, US Climate). Based on these projections Tucson could be facing average highs of 90+°F and a decrease in annual precipitation of 0.95". Now more than ever we must work to conserve this precious resource. The integration of water harvesting Green Infrastructure practices into daily life must be coordinated with educational efforts for southwestern residents to inform about conserving this resource. A River Runs Through It intends to recreate the selected site as a functional, ecological, laboratory for the surrounding science buildings, as well as a template for similar areas on campus. The design aims to improve on-site management of water resources, such as storm water and building HVAC condensate through the creation of a dry arroyo bio-swale, which will provide unique gathering spaces for campus users as well as research opportunities

for students and faculty. The project also aims to improve connectivity, as well as create a distinct and unique sense of place for the University of Arizona that could be distilled and applied to related sites across the campus. The project seeks to create a functional water harvesting system that educates about desert systems and water conservation practices.

Student Team - D13

Nate Ritchie, B.A. Psychology, B.A. Philosophy, Masters of Landscape Architecture Fei Yu, B.Eng. Landscape Architecture, Masters of Landscape Architecture Dan Zedick, B.S. Sustainable Built Environments, Masters of Landscape Architecture Yuheng Zheng, B.Eng. Landscape Architecture, Masters of Landscape Architecture

Faculty Advisor

Bo Yang, Ph.D., PLA, Associate Professor: Landscape Architecture & Planning

Other Advisors

Professor Grant McCormick, AICP, Campus Planner, GIS Coordinator, University of Arizona Planning, Design, and Construction

Eric Scharf, RLA, Adjunct Professor, Former Principal Wheat Design Group

Table of Contents

Site Selection + Analysis	••••••	1
Site Design Strategy	••••••	2
Design Solution		3
Planting Plan		5
Modeling & Performance Outcomes		6
Education & Engagement	••••••	8
Climate Resiliency		9
Maintenance & Operation		10
Budget & Funding Sources		11
Conclusions		11
References	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	12
Calculations	••••••	13

Site Selection + Analysis

Situated among seven science buildings, the site serves a broad spectrum of users, including teachers, students, and residents of the University of Arizona (U of A).

Surrounded by buildings on all sides with student housing located just offsite, as well as a student union, the site features high traffic volumes as well as high visibility. In addition, the site is close to many transportation hubs, such as a major campus parking garage, multiple bus stops, and the main hub for off campus student housing transportation services. The site is identified as a high priority area within the U of A Surface Water



Figure 1 - Site Context within the University of Arizona campus

Master Implementation Plan (SWMIP), the main reason being that it has the potential to mitigate downstream flooding problems for buildings that are within the 100 year flood plain. Based on the SWMIP design suggestions, the site would have a storm water harvesting feature that accommodates 7.03-acre feet of storm water, and would



Figure 2 - Project site

be approximately 785' x 65' in dimension (Surface Water Master Implementation Plan, SWMIP-10). A main goal for this project is to meet or exceed the U of A SWMIP metrics for storm water detention, while also creating a feature that improves the aesthetics and human functionality of the site. Currently the site has a time of concentration, for

a 100-year 24-hour storm event of approximately 10 minutes. Based on this metric, another design goal is to retain all water from a 100 year 24-hour storm event on-site, which would alleviate many of the downstream flooding issues. While the project has many other goals, the implementation of only these has the potential to drastically improve ecological function and offers the opportunity to re-work pedestrian, bicycle, and maintenance vehicle circulation.

Currently much of the site is fragmented, with vegetation and paving surfaces changing frequently between buildings. The result is a mish-mash of underused spaces that lack cohesion and have, in some cases, fallen into disrepair. Utilized as a major circulation conduit, both for pedestrians as well as maintenance vehicles, there are numerous conflicts throughout the site when pedestrians and cyclists must avoid cars that are driving seemingly everywhere. What serves as existing maintenance parking is accessible only by traversing across sidewalks and dirt paths, but supplementary parking is located on the street-side of all the buildings. In the event of heavy rain storms, which occur often during Tucson's monsoon season, the central and western portions of the site flood and runoff onto adjacent streets resulting in little to no on-site storm water management.

Through improved design there is the ability to positively impact major functional and circulatory elements that would serve to improve both the site aesthetic and performance, in terms of water harvesting infrastructure and human comfort.

Site Design Strategy

As proposed in the Storm Water Master Implementation Plan (SWMIP) this site would be able to detain 7.03-acre feet of storm water, which would enter the site from the



Figure 3 - Site water flow & issues

northeast corner from 4th street. The University of Arizona plan calls for a combination of active and passive mitigation strategies such as: subsurface cisterns, storage tanks, etc. as well as bio-swales, detention and retention basins (Surface Water Master Implementation Plan, 4-6, Figure 17). The proposed design, *A River Runs Through It*, is able to capture and detain a greater amount of a water with significantly less subsurface treatments while also treating the water harvesting and detention system as a functional amenity with educational components throughout. Additionally, numerous environmental improvements are folded into the functional and beautiful design.



Figure 4 - A River Runs Through It design solution

Design Solution

The main goals of the project are to: retain 100% of storm water runoff from a 100year 24-hour storm event, to meet or exceed the SWMIP target detention volume for storm water of 7.03 acre feet, and to mitigate downstream flooding issues for major campus buildings. *A River Runs Through It* seeks to take the functional aspects of water harvesting infrastructure and integrate them with educational and activity amenities throughout the site to better educate users as to the importance of water in the southwest. It also seeks to improve the site ecology by utilizing native and near native plant palettes, increasing the vegetative cover, and utilizing building heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) condensate for supplemental irrigation. The ecological aspects serve a dual purpose by creating outdoor learning environments and comfortable places to spend time. The implementation of educational signage to inform about water harvesting, as well as desert ecosystems and biotic communities, also helps to educate visitors to the Green Infrastructure systems around them.

In total, the design has the capacity to handle 8.47 acre feet of storage. This is primarily achieved through passive systems, detention and retention basins,



Figure 5 - Drawing illustrating the storage tank concept

and some active water harvesting systems, which are subsurface storage tanks. Within *A River Runs Through It,* the central conceptual and organizing feature is a dry arroyo. Through the arroyo, in combination with street-scape bio-swales, and three underground storage tanks, the design is able to exceed the University of Arizona Surface Water Master Implementation Plan target storage of 7.03 acre feet by 1.44 acre feet. The design integrates green infrastructure techniques, storm water management practices, ecological planting design, and amenities for campus users. In addition to



Figure 6 - Section showcasing the central basin as well as the concept of utilizing HVAC condensate for irrigation

the main arroyo feature, the site also has a campus beach, which offers opportunity for playful recreation. The beach uses the existing palm tree grid, enhances the area with a board-walk, and creates connections to the Park Student Union across the street

with a sandy beach where students can sun bath, throw a frisbee, or enjoy their lunch. This design creates a beautiful, functional, educational, and playful space in an underutilized portion of campus.



Figure 8 - Drawing illustrating check dam & vegetated basins concept

The design solution incorporates a variety of green infrastructure and low impact design strategies, some of which include: bio-retention/detention basins throughout the site, permeable paving surfaces, and reducing the amount of hardscape on-site. Additionally, the dry arroyo functions as the main storm water harvesting element,

while also serving as habitat for pollinators and creating shade and a pleasant environment for human users. In addition to the arroyo, there are three subsurface tanks located at major points within the design, these tanks offer the ability to capture, store, and utilize the water for irrigation or other purposes. Educational elements



Figure 9 - Drawing illustrating the elevated walkway over the vegetated basins

and outdoor classrooms are integrated throughout to take advantage of opportunities presented throughout the site.

Planting Plan

The planting plan is divided into three main groups which correspond to irrigation needs, hydro zones, and climate resiliency. The three native plant communities, Arizona Upland, Xeroriparian Woodland, and Lower Colorado River Valley, were chosen to transition vegetation between arid, low water plants, where there is little programmed use, to lush and riparian plant species where the most active spaces are located.



Figure 7 - Section illustrating the three biotic communities & hydro zones associated, additionally, the native & near native planting palette

Modeling & Analysis

The design utilizes two main strategies for storm water harvesting. The central storm water features are passive water harvesting retention and detention basins. The dry arroyo functions as a large passive system with many smaller subsystems making up

its functional pieces. 12 basins and check dams serve to slow water as it enters the site from the northeast. As water makes its way towards the central and largest basin, it moves through five small vegetated basins which slow storm water and offer the opportunity for infiltration and phytoremediation. From the west the site has been re-graded such that rather storm water drains back towards the central basin rather than



Figure 10 - Drawing illustrating the street-scape bio-retention basin concept along 4th St

draining toward Park Avenue and exacerbating downstream flooding issues.

The other strategy is active water harvesting in the form of three storage tanks placed at the three main overflow points in the design. The central storage tank is located below the main harvesting basin in the center of the site. Additional minor tanks are located below the basins to the east and west of the central basin. The active water harvesting within the design serves as a safety valve for the passive systems. In the case of a 500+ year storm, the active systems would be able to handle the overflow. The minor tanks serve to ensure that the system has a safe amount of redundancy built into it and ensures that the system can accommodate greater than a 500-year 24-hour storm event. The central tank serves the dual purposes of being a safety

feature in the event of a system failure or a massive storm event that inundates the system, as well as storage for HVAC condensate. The seven buildings produce an average of 3,190,600 gallons of water each year that can be utilized to supplement landscape irrigation. The active systems coupled with the passive ones allow the design to capture a greater volume of water than the SWMIP calls for by 1.44-acre feet as well as being able to handle greater than a 500-year



Figure 11 - Example of interpretive educational signage that would be emulated in the ecological laboratory



Figure 12 - Example of educational opportunities in the educational laboratory

24-hour storm event, which would produce 5.83 acre feet of storm water.

In addition to the storm water that moves through the site, another source of downstream flooding is water moving west down 4th Street, directly to the north of the site. This flow is an average of 225 cubic feet per second (Surface Water Master Implementation Plan, 4-6, Figure 17). To mitigate this flow street basins were designed along 4th Street to capture that water and to remediate flooding issues that it causes.

Education & Engagement

Storm water retention and flood mitigation is a priority for the University of Arizona and thus has high probability of implementation. A River Runs Through It project intends to recreate the space as a functional ecological laboratory to enhance campus sustainability while promoting education and research within the natural environment. Phytoremediation, the water cleaning and filtering function of the plants, creates an integrated system of storm water usage and sanitation. The native plants in and around the basins have unique structures and create shade for campus users as well as serve

an important ecological function. Users can enjoy respite from the intense heat in summer and take a rest in this backyard style space after a busy day of classes or work. This project is located between science buildings, where students are learning about biology, ecology, chemistry and other sciences. The central Sonoran Desert Rain Garden will provide educational opportunities for these students. There are a number of informal outdoor classroom spaces, and opportunities for professors and students to run experiments within the site. The campus beach is located on the west side of the site and provides amenities such as sand and tropical palm trees. Users can read interpretive education signage, located throughout the site,



Figure 13 - Graphic illustrating benefits of increased vegetation

about green infrastructure strategies, climate resiliency, plant communities, and treating storm water as a resource. *A River Runs Through It* provides opportunities to increase awareness about the importance of green infrastructure and sustainable landscape practices, while also created inviting spaces that users will enjoy.

Climate Resiliency

The proposed site design serves as a demonstration project which educates the campus on the benefits and strategies of green infrastructure, including water harvesting techniques, climate change mitigation, and the natural biologic communities of the desert southwest. Tucson is a city of perennial heat and long drought. The temperature reaches extreme highs and is very dry for extended periods of time. However, during the summer monsoon season and winter rain, Tucson experiences significant flooding. These shifts place extreme stress on existing water supplies, such that effective management is integral to mitigating the harsh pressures placed on systems within the changing climate. *A River Runs Through It* integrates water management through storage, infiltration, and reuse. Native vegetation improves infiltration and promotes phytoremediation, which helps to restore the natural preconstruction hydro-logic regime on campus. The five basins on the east as well as the



Figure 16 - Global perspective of A River Runs Through It looking to the west side of the site

six basins on the west, help to mitigate the pressures of flooding during a heavy rain event and they also create more permeable surface to plant native vegetation. The native plants can help to reduce the high temperature in summer, creating a comfortable place to campus users to take a rest and enjoy a natural setting instead of holing up in an air-conditioned room. The garden and beach in the center and west provide large spaces for gathering. The conversion of turf grass lawn on the beach to sand decreases irrigation water demand and increases resiliency to drought, while reducing maintenance.



Maintenance & Operation

Figure 15 - Construction & Maintenance Plan

The project will be implemented in one phase to reduce the impact on campus users and academic functions. This was determined in consultation with the campus landscape architect, who also provided estimates for the length of construction as approximately one and a half years.

Budget & Funding Sources

The University of Arizona has studied the Science Commons and ear marked 2.5 million dollars to mitigate identified on site issues. Using the Water Environment and Reuse Foundation Low Impact Development Whole Life Cost Tools is estimated that *A River Runs Through It* could be implemented at a cost of approximately 2,474,200 dollars, which is below the Universities ear marked budget (Advanced Solutions International). The underground storage tanks will be the most costly item within the design, estimated to cost \$1,346,825. Permeable paving, which covers approximately 69,500 square feet is estimated to cost \$917,400. The excavation and grading of the Dry Arroyo is estimated to cost \$209,975.

Funding for this project will consist of a mixture of funding sources, including the University of Arizona infrastructure funds, as well as contributions from the City of Tucson and Pima County as these mitigation solutions will reduce downstream flooding issues on public roads. Grant funding may also be available through Environmental Protection Agency and Federal Emergency Management Agency programs.

Conclusion

A River Runs Through It will change the status quo of green infrastructure on the University of Arizona Campus. Through the mitigation of storm-water issues this design will positively impact students, faculty, campus users, and the greater Tucson community. As a model for sustainable climate resilient design, this project can serve as a precedent that can be repeated across campus and the southwest.



Figure 16 - Aerial view of existing site conditions

References

A Wild Soap Bar. "Yucca root shampoo & body soap." Yucca root shampoo & body bar soap natural handmade organic solid shampoo. Accessed November 26, 2017. http://www.awildsoapbar.com/store/p/45-yucca-root-shampoo-body-soap.aspx.

Advanced Solutions International, Inc. "BMP AND LID WHOLE LIFE COST TOOLS." BMP and LID Whole Life Cost Tools. Accessed December 15, 2017. http:// www.werf.org/c/KnowledgeAreas/Stormwater/ProductsToolsnonWERF/BMP_and_LID_Whole_Li.aspx.

Alamay. "Fishhook Cactus Stock Photos and Images." Alamy Stock Photos. Accessed November 26, 2017. http://www.alamy.com/stock-photo/fishhook-cactus. html.

Arizona Department of Water Resources. "Tucson AMA Climate." Tucson AMA Climate. Accessed November 30, 2017. http://www.azwater.gov/AzDWR/State-widePlanning/WaterAtlas/ActiveManagementAreas/Climate/TucsonAMA.htm.

Arizona-Sonora Desert Museum. "ASDM Sonoran Desert Digital Library." Arizona-Sonora Desert Museum Digital Library. Accessed November 26, 2017. http:// www.desertmuseumdigitallibrary.org/public/species.php?c=plants.

Arizona State University. "Anisacanthus quadrifidus var wrightii." Arizona State University. Accessed November 26, 2017. http://www.public.asu.edu/~camartin/plants/Plant%20files/anisacanthuswrightii.html.

Arizona Wild Flowers. Wildflower Pictures, Photos, Information, & Reviews. "Arizona Wild FlowersPictures, Photos, ImagesDescriptions, Information, Reviews." Jojoba, Simmondsia chinensis. Arizona Wild Flowers. Wildflower Pictures, Photos, Information, & Reviews. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://delange.org/ Jojoba/Jojoba.htm.

AZ Plant Lady. "Learn About the Desert's Iconic Tree: The Palo Verde." Ramblings from a Desert Garden. November 03, 2016. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://www.azplantlady.com/2009/09/iconic-desert-tree-palo-verde.html.

Data, US Climate. "Temperature - Precipitation - Sunshine - Snowfall." Climate Tucson - Arizona and Weather averages Tucson. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://www.usclimatedata.com/climate/tucson/arizona/united-states/usaz0247.

Dave's Garden. "PlantFiles: Palmer's Indian Mallow, Superstition Mallow." Dave's Garden. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://davesgarden.com/guides/pf/go/73304/.

Desert Mountain. "Four-Wing Saltbush (Atriplex canescens)." DMRC&D. Accessed November 26, 2017. http://desertmountainrcandd.org/54-2/shop/four-wing-saltbush-atriplex-canescens/.

DesertUSA.com, Lara Hartley for. "Burrobush, Burro Weed, White Bursage." Burrobush, Burro Weed, White Bursage, Ambrosia dumosa - DesertUSA. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://www.desertusa.com/flowers/Burrobush-Burro-Weed-White-Bursage.html.

Garfin, G., A. Jardine, R. Merideth, M. Black, and S. LeRoy, eds. 2013. Assessment of Climate Change in the Southwest United States: A Report Prepared for the National ClimateAssessment. A report by the Southwest Climate Alliance. Washington, DC: Island Press.

Janke, Donna. "Desert Spring Blooms." Destinations Detours and Dreams. May 24, 2017. Accessed November 26, 2017. http://www.destinationsdetoursdreams. com/2014/03/spring-blooms/.

Las Pilitas Nursery. "Atriplex lentiformis Breweri." Costa Hummingbird on a Saliva clevelandii Alpine. Native plants support native birds and butterflies. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://www.laspilitas.com/nature-of-california/plants/105--atriplex-lentiformis-breweri.

Mielke, Judy. Native plants for Southwestern landscapes. Austin: University of Texas Press, 1997.

Monarchs in the Desert. "Prepare Your Yard for Monarch Butterflies!" Monarchs in the Desert. Accessed November 26, 2017. http://monarchsinthedesert.blogspot.com/2011/08/.

Mountain States Wholesale Nursery. "Plant Database." Mountain States Wholesale Nursery. Accessed November 26, 2017. http://www.mswn.com/plants/database/plant/parkinsonia-microphyllum/.

National Park Service. "Plants." National Parks Service. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://www.nps.gov/cagr/learn/nature/plants.htm.

National Park Service. "Saguaro Cactus: Sentinel of the Southwest (U.S. National Park Service)." National Parks Service. Accessed November 26, 2017. https:// www.nps.gov/articles/saguaro-cactus-facts.htm.

Naturalist Newsletter. "Dogweed." Dogweed, THYMOPHYLLA PENTACHAETA. Accessed November 26, 2017. http://www.backyardnature.net/n/h/dogweed.htm.

Patrick Alexander. "Prosopis pubescens." Polyploid.net: SW Plants. Accessed November 26, 2017. http://www.polyploid.net/swplants/pages/Prosopis_pub.html. Shipek, Lisa, Catlow Shipek, and Kieran Sikdar. Green Infrastructure for Desert Communites. Tucson, AZ: Watershed Management Group, 2017.

Simpson, Rebekah J. "Creosote Bush Healing Cancer." WALK A SHAMANS PATH. November 29, 2016. Accessed November 26, 2017. http://www.walkashamanspath.com/creosote-bush-healing-cancer/.

Slichter, Paul. "Broom Snakeweed, Kindlingweed, Match Brush, Matchweed." Accessed November 26, 2017. http://science.halleyhosting.com/nature/gorge/sun/ daisy/gutierrezia/sarothrae.htm.

Southern Nevada Water Authority. "Plant Details." Plant Search. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://www.snwa.com/apps/plant/detail.cfml?type=80&id=14633.

Sturla, Eugene. "Southwest Desert Flora." Penstemon parryi, Parry's Beardtongue, Southwest Desert Flora. Accessed November 26, 2017. http://southwestdesertflora.com/WebsiteFolders/All_Species/Scrophulariaceae/Penstemon%20parryi,%20Parry%27s%20Beardtongue.html.

Surface Water Master Implementation Plan. Report no. M3-PN06064. Campus and Facilities Planning, University of Arizona. Tucson, AZ: M3, 2009. 1-88

Tohono Chul. "Indigo Bush - Dalea pulchra." Tohono Chul. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://tohonochulpark.org/shop/products/indigo-bush-dalea-pulchra/.

Tucson Clean & Beautiful, Inc. "Tree Availability." Tucson Clean and Beautiful, Inc. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://tucsoncleanandbeautiful.org/trees-fortucson/information-resources/tree-descriptions/.

University of California, Division of Agriculture and Natural Resources. "Estimating Tree Water Requirements." Center for Landscape & Urban Horticulture. Accessed November 30, 2017. http://ucanr.edu/sites/UrbanHort/Water_Use_of_Turfgrass_and_Landscape_Plant_Materials/Estimating_Water_Requirements_of_Landscape_Trees/.

USDA. "Natural Resources Conservation Service." 'Windbreaker' Big Sacaton – Protecting Crops and Structures from Blowing Soil | NRCS Plant Materials Program. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://www.blogs.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/plantmaterials/home/?cid=stelprdb1253705.

Wikipedia. "Encelia farinosa." Wikipedia. November 26, 2017. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://es.wikipedia.org/wiki/Encelia_farinosa.

Wikipedia. "Prosopis velutina." Wikipedia. October 23, 2017. Accessed November 26, 2017. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Prosopis_velutina.

Your Dictionary. "Ocotillo." Ocotillo dictionary definition | ocotillo defined. Accessed November 26, 2017. http://www.yourdictionary.com/ocotillo.

Calculations

Existing Conditions		Area (sq/ ft)	% of Total	Post Design Conditions		Area (sq/ ft)	% of Total		
Buildings				Buildings					
	McClelland Park	29,138			McClelland Park	29,138			
	Gould-Simpson	44,984			Gould-Simpson	44,984			
	Physics	39,054			Physics	39,054			
	Mathematics & Teaching Laboratory	11,228			Mathematics & Teaching Laboratory	11,228			
	Life Sciences South	16,804			Life Sciences South	16,804			
	Bio Sciences West	48,024			Bio Sciences West	48,024			
	Animal 7 Comparative Biomedical Sciences	22,160			Animal 7 Comparative Biomedical Sciences	22,160			
	Total Building Area	226,368	38.9%		Total Building Area	211,392	38.9%		
Gravel		141,745	24.4%	Gravel		29,489	5.1%		
Parking		58,096	10.0%	Parking		12,895	2.2%		
Lawn		66,241	11.4%	Lawn		Removed	0%		
Vegetative Cover		25,986	4.5%	Permeable Sidewalks		87,464	15.1%		
Other Impervious		62,288	10.7%	Bioretention Areas		88,845	15.3%		
				Dry Arroyo		135,673	23.36%		
Total Area		580,724		Total Area		580,724			
Total Site Runoff 100 year 24 hour storm event Volume of Dry Arroyo									
Rainfall from storm event = 3.8 inches Area = 135,673 sq ft									
Cita Area EQ0 704 aquara faat				Average Depth = 7'					
Average Deptit = 7									

Volume = Area x Depth

acre feet of runoff

```
Volume = 83,624,256 (area in square inches) x 3.8
```

Volume = 317,772,172 cubic inches OR 4.22

```
Area = 135,673 sq ft
Average Depth = 7'
Volume = Area x Depth
Volume = 949,711 / 3
949,711 / 3 [to account for side slopes]
```

Total Storage 316,570 cubic feet OR 7.01 acre feet

% of Irrigation from HVAC condensate (University of California, 2017)

3,190,600 gallons of HVAC available

Total gallons of irrigation required = $ET \times PF \times LA \times 0.623$

ET = real-time evapotranspiration: 111.07 (Arizona Department of Water Resources)

PF = Plant Factor: 0.7 trees, shrubs, groundcovers, bedding plants

LA = surface area covered by plant canopy (assumes 805 coverage)

255,519 sq ft

0.623 = inches to gallons conversion factor

Total gallons = 111.07 x 0.7 x 255,519 x 0.623

Total gallons = 10,608,629

3,190,600 / 10,608,629 = 0.3007 OR 30.07% from HVAC condensate